
San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, August 14, 2024, 1:30 PM 
In-Person Meeting:  
County of San Luis Obispo Government Center 
Board of Supervisor Chambers 
1055 Monterey Street, | San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 

Mission Statement: 
The Mission of the IWMA is to provide coordinated efforts to follow state waste and recycling policy on 

behalf of member agencies through practical, cost-effective programs, education, and technical support. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
Robert Robert, President, City of Grover Beach 
James Guthrie, Vice President, City of Arroyo Grande 
Jan Marx, Past President, City of San Luis Obispo 
Charles Bourbeau, City of Atascadero 
Jimmy Paulding, County of San Luis Obispo, District 4 Supervisor 
John Hamon, City of El Paso de Robles 
Laurel Barton, City of Morro Bay       
Robert Enns, Special Districts 
Scott Newton, City of Pismo Beach 

Instructions For Written Public Comment: 
Written Public Comment before the meeting must be submitted by 9:00 a.m., the day of the meeting. 
Community members are encouraged to submit agenda correspondence via email to Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk 
of the Board, at sdelgiorgio@iwma.com. Agenda correspondence received by 9:00 a.m. on the meeting day 
will be posted on the IWMA website and become part of the official record of the Board Meeting. Community 
members may attend the meeting in person at the San Luis Obispo County Board of Supervisors Chambers. 
Community members may attend the meeting in person at the San Luis Obispo County Government Center, Board 
of Supervisor Chambers, 1055 Monterey Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93408. 

Americans with Disabilities Act Compliance:  
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), the IWMA is committed to including the disabled in all 
its services, programs, and activities. If you need special aid to participate in this meeting, please get in touch with 
Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk of the Board, at least 72 hours before the meeting to enable the IWMA to make 
reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the meeting. The IWMA Clerk of the Board can be reached at 
(805) 781-2192 and through email at sdelgiorgio@iwma.com.

1. Call To Order
2. Roll Call
3. Pledge Of Allegiance

Non-Agenda Public Comment Period 

PRESENTATION 

4. Executive Director’s Report
Presented by Peter Cron, Executive Director.

Page | 1

mailto:sdelgiorgio@iwma.com
https://www.iwma.com/board-meetings
mailto:sdelgiorgio@iwma.com


Consent Agenda Public Comment Period 

CONSENT AGENDA 

5. Executive Committee Minutes Receive and File – May 31, 2024 Page 4
Recommendation: Receive and file the May 31, 2024, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes.

6. Board Meeting Minutes Review – June 12, 2024 Page 7
Recommendation: Approve the June 12, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes.

7. Monthly Financial Reports Page 13
Recommendation: Receive and file the attached monthly financial reports.

8. Resolution 2024-08-01, Authorizing Signatures for Banking and Financial Services Page 22 
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 2024-08-01, updating the IWMA authorized signatories for 
banking and financial services.

9. Resolution 2024-08-02, Amended and Restated Conflict of Interest Code Page 25
 Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 2024-08-02, amending and restating the IWMA Conflict of 
Interest Code.

Regular Agenda Public Comment Period 

REGULAR AGENDA 

10. Chicago Grade Transfer Station – NDFE Page 34
Recommendation: Review and discuss the addition of the Chicago Grade Transfer Station to the Non-
Disposal Facility Element for the County of San Luis Obispo.

11.  Hamlin Creative Page 39
Recommendation: Authorize the Board President to sign agreement with Hamlin Creative for video 
creation and production of recycling and composting messaging consistent with our mission and goals.

12. Presentation of Final Draft Audit for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Page 48
Recommendation: Review, discuss, and file the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management 
Authority FY 22/23 Governance Letter and FY 22/23 Financial Statements.

13.  Consideration of Approval of Compensation Increase for Unrepresented Employees Page 79 
Recommendation: Approve a 3.8% cost-of-living compensation increase for unrepresented 
employees and 10% increase in the cafeteria plan contribution to keep pace with rising health 
insurance costs; and direct staff to continue exploring other options amid the rising costs of health 
care.

Page | 2



 
Closed Session Public Comment Period 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
The Executive Committee will recess into closed session pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act on the following 
item: 

 
14. Conference with Real Property Negotiators 

Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
regarding: APN 002-292-029, 555 Chorro Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401. Agency 
Representative: Peter Cron, Executive Director. 

 
 

15. Board Member Communications 
Provides board members an opportunity to make an announcement and briefly report on their 
activities directly related to agency business.  
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

2024 Upcoming Meetings and Events  
  

 
    

Board of Directors  September 11, 2024 October 9, 2024 November 13, 2024 
Executive Committee  August 30, 2024 September 27, 2024 November 1, 2024 

 

Page | 3



Item No. 5 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk of the Board 

RE: Executive Committee Minutes Receive and File – May 31, 2024 

BACKGROUND: 
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Receive and file the May 31, 2024, Executive Committee Meeting Minutes. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. 2024-05-31 EC Minutes

Page | 4



Page | 5



Page | 6



Item No. 6 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk of the Board 

RE: Board Meeting Minutes Review – June 12, 2024 

BACKGROUND: 
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve the June 12, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. BOD DRAFT Minutes – June 12, 2024

Page | 7



  
 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
 

Wednesday, June 12, 2024, 2:00 P.M. 
County of San Luis Obispo Government Center 

1055 Monterey Street, Room 161-162, San Luis Obispo, CA, 93408  
  

Board of Directors:  
Jan Marx, President, City of San Luis Obispo 

Robert Robert, Vice President, City of Grover Beach 
Charles Bourbeau, Past President, City of Atascadero 

James Guthrie, City of Arroyo Grande 
Jimmy Paulding, County of San Luis Obispo, District 4 Supervisor 

John Hamon, City of El Paso de Robles 
Laurel Barton, City of Morro Bay 

Robert Enns, Special Districts 
Scott Newton, City of Pismo Beach 

 
 

1. Call to Order  
President Marx called the Board Meeting to order on June 12, 2024, at 2:00 P.M. 

 
2. Roll Call  

Board Members Present: Barton (2:11 P.M.), Bourbeau, Enns, Guthrie, Hamon, Newton, 
Paulding, Vice President Robert, President Marx 
Absent: None. 

 
3. Pledge of Allegiance  

 
Non-Agenda Public Comment Period  

 No public comment submitted. 
  
Presentation  
 

4.  Executive Directors Report  
  Presented by Executive Director, Peter Cron.  
  

Page | 8



Consent Agenda Public Comment Period 
No public comment submitted. 

Consent Agenda  

5. Executive Committee Minutes Receive and File – April 26, 2024
Recommendation: Receive and file the April 26, 2024, Executive Committee Meeting
Minutes.

6. Board Minutes Review – May 8, 2024
Recommendation: Approve the May 8, 2024, Board Meeting Minutes.

7. Compost Rebate Program
Recommendation: That your Board a) approve an extension to the Compost Rebate Agreement
approved in September 2022 for an additional 12-month period of July 1, 2024, through June 30,
2025, and in any subsequent fiscal year when the program is funded by the IWMA Board or
other funding source; and b) authorize the IWMA Executive Director to sign the Compost Rebate
Agreement Extension and Participation Terms for fiscal year 2024-2025 and for any subsequent
fiscal year when the program is funded by the IWMA Board or other funding source.

8. Monthly Financial Reports
Recommendation: Receive and file the attached monthly financial reports.

9. Annual Audit Services – Fiscal Years 2023/2024, 2024/2025, 2025/2026
Recommendation: A) Approve staff’s ranking and recommendation of the selected firm; and B)
Authorize staff to negotiate and finalize the Contract for Professional Auditing Services with the
selected firm, to be signed by the Board President.

10. Social Media Services
Recommendation: Direct staff to reevaluate social media work effort and return to Executive
Committee with a revised RFP.

Motion by: Bourbeau
Second by: Hamon

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Item Nos. 5 through 10.

Approved by the following roll call vote:
Ayes:  Bourbeau, Hamon, Barton, Enns, Guthrie, Newton, Paulding, Robert, Marx
Noes:   None

CARRIED (9-0) 

Page | 9



Regular Agenda Public Comment Period 
No public comment submitted. 

Regular Agenda 

11. Technical Assistance Grant Application – City of El Paso de Robles
Recommendation: Authorize the Executive Director to award $10,000 in grant funds to the City
of El Paso de Robles to purchase water bottle filling stations for city facilities to assist with the
City’s waste reduction efforts of single-use plastic bottles.

Motion by:  Bourbeau
Second by:  Enns

Motion to approve Item 11.

Approved by the following roll call vote:
Ayes:  Bourbeau, Enns, Barton, Guthrie, Newton, Paulding, Robert, Marx 
Abstain: 
Noes:   

Hamon
 None 

CARRIED (8-1-0) 

12. Third Quarter Budget Review for Fiscal Year 2023/2024
Recommendation: Review and discuss the Third Quarter Budget, Fiscal Year 2023/2024.

No action.

13. Resolution 2024-06-01 Temporary Reduction of the IWMA Solid Waste Management Fee
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 2024-06-01 temporarily reducing the IWMA Solid Waste
Management Fee from 5.4% to 3.0%, effective July 1, 2024.

Motion to approve Item 13.

Motion by:  Hamon
Second by:  Bourbeau

Approved by the following roll call vote:
Ayes:  Hamon, Bourbeau, Barton, Enns, Guthrie, Newton, Paulding, Robert, Marx
Noes:   None

CARRIED (9-0) 

14. Resolution 2024-06-02 Fiscal Year 2024/2025 Preliminary Budget
Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 2024-06-02 approving the Preliminary Budget, Fiscal Year
2024/2025.

Motion to approve Item 14.

Motion by:  Bourbeau
Second by:  Robert

Page | 10



Approved by the following roll call vote: 
Ayes: Bourbeau, Robert, Barton, Enns, Guthrie, Hamon, Newton, Paulding, Marx 
Noes: None 

CARRIED (9-0) 

15. Executive Committee Elections
Recommendation: Conduct the Executive Committee Elections as required by the IWMA Joint
Powers Agreement, Section 9.4 Officers.

Motion to elect the FY 2024/2025 Executive Committee Officers as follows:
President:  Robert Robert 
Vice President: James Guthrie 
Past President: Jan Marx 

Motion by:  Bourbeau 
Second by:  Enns 

Approved by the following roll call vote: 
Ayes: Bourbeau, Enns, Barton, Guthrie, Hamon, Newton, Paulding, Robert, Marx 
Noes: None 

CARRIED (9-0) 

Closed Session Agenda Public Comment Period 
No public comment submitted. 

CLOSED SESSION  
The Board will recess into closed session pursuant to the Ralph M. Brown Act on the following items: 

16. Conference with Labor Negotiators
Pursuant to Government Code 54957.6: Conference with labor negotiators regarding
unrepresented bargaining units. Agency Representative: Peter Cron, Executive Director.

17. Conference with Real Property Negotiators
Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.8: Conference with Real Property Negotiators
regarding: APN 002-292-029, 555 Chorro Street, San Luis Obispo, CA 93401. Agency
Representative: Peter Cron, Executive Director.

Readjourn to Open Session and Closed Session Report 

No reportable action. 

Page | 11



18. Board Member Communications

Adjournment: 3:27 P.M. 

Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk of the Board 
San Luis Obispo County 
Integrated Waste Management Authority 

Page | 12



Item No. 7 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director 

RE: Monthly Financial Reports 

BACKGROUND: 
Below are completed financial reports for May 2024 and June 2024. The attached 
presentation of revenues is structured upon cash inflows and outflows, providing the 
Board with a more comprehensive and transparent understanding of the financial position 
of our agency.  

May 2024 
• Revenue Received Report $ 2,047,458.60 1 
• Expenditure Report $ 166,765.35 
• Credit Card Report $ 3,100.18 

June 2024 
• Revenue Received Report $ 318,958.31 
• Expenditure Report $ 175,034.93 
• Credit Card Report $ 9,066.16   

RECOMMENDATION:  
Receive and file the attached monthly financial reports. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Revenue Report – May 2024
B. Expense Report – May 2024
C. Credit Card Report – May 2024
D. Revenue Report – June 2024
E. Expense Report – June 2024
F. Credit Card Report – June 2024

1 Includes 22/23 Cycle 4 SB1383 Local Assistance Grant - $1,430,723.00 

Page | 13



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
 Revenue Received-Cash Basis 

May 2024

Total
Income
   400 Non_Operation Revenue
      4150000 Interest Revenue 0.43 
      4200105 Grants 1,430,723.00 
   Total 400 Non_Operation Revenue $    1,430,723.43 
   435 Operation Revenue
      4350200 CESQG Payment 2,340.00 
      4350235 Billings to Outside Agencies 74.59 

      4350820 Solid Waste Management Fee 468,679.95 
      4350825 Landfill Tipping Fee 
Surcharge 99,966.19 
      4350955 Retail Take Back Fees 1,930.50 
      4450020 Hazardous Waste Credits 4,238.20 
   Total 435 Operation Revenue $       577,229.43 
   Markup -5,248.12 
   Services 1,698.86 
   Unapplied Cash Payment Income 43,055.00 
TOTAL INCOME $    2,047,458.60 

Page | 14



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
Expense Report Accrual Basis

May 2024
Purchase 

order date Vendor name Brief Description Amount
05/01/2024 Richetti Water Solutions Reverse Osmosis System $              19.95
05/01/2024 Mountaineer IT Inc IT Services $         1,312.23
05/01/2024 San Luis Garbage Company Utilities - Trash Service $              43.69
05/01/2024 Andrea Biniskiewicz Social Media Management $         2,560.00

05/01/2024 Paso Robles Chamber of Commerce
Chamber of Commerce 
Membership $            349.00

05/01/2024 Cold Canyon Landfill SLO E-Waste Collection $         2,000.00
05/01/2024 Astound Business Solutions Office Telephone Services $            295.78
05/01/2024 Rainscape Landscape Services $            125.00
05/03/2024 Pacific Waste Services E-Waste Collection $         2,000.00
05/03/2024 Gaspar Soilbuilders LLC Compost Rebate Program  $         9,285.20
05/04/2024 Charter Communications/Spectrum Utilities - Internet $            129.99
05/05/2024 Amazon Capital Services Inc. Office Supplies $              71.88
05/06/2024 SDRMA EE Benefits $         8,200.92
05/06/2024 Chicago Grade Landfill & Recycling E-Waste Collection $         2,000.00
05/07/2024 Mission Linen and Uniform Service Janitorial Services $              23.75
05/07/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $         3,774.80
05/07/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $         1,367.40
05/07/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $         1,038.00
05/07/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $         3,086.74
05/07/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $            386.57
05/07/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $            140.03
05/10/2024 CPSC $         1,603.00
05/13/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $         3,738.98
05/13/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $         7,773.00
05/13/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $       21,378.39
05/14/2024 ASAP Reprographics Copy/Print Services $              94.09
05/14/2024 Mountaineer IT Inc IT Services $         2,468.26
05/15/2024 SoCalGas Utilities - Gas $              16.05
05/15/2024 City of San Luis Obispo - Water Utilities - Water $              71.04

05/15/2024 Atlas Performance Industries, Inc.
HHW E-Waste Storage 
Containers $            130.00

05/15/2024 Atlas Performance Industries, Inc.
HHW E-Waste Storage 
Containers $            130.00

05/16/2024 Erin Clausen Photography Employee Headshots $            170.00
05/16/2024 Erin Clausen Photography Employee Headshots $            170.00
05/16/2024 UBEO West LLC Copier Rental & Service $         1,497.90
05/16/2024 Opolo Vineyards Inc. Compost Rebate Program $         7,312.10
05/16/2024 CRRA Organizations $              75.00
05/17/2024 Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & Green Legal Services $         1,757.50
05/19/2024 Amazon Capital Services Inc. Office Supplies $            133.66
05/20/2024 Executive Janitorial Janitorial Services $            295.00
05/20/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $         3,183.92
05/20/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $            140.03
05/20/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $         1,367.40
05/20/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $         4,102.51
05/20/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $         1,038.00
05/20/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $            420.13
05/21/2024 Mission Linen and Uniform Service Janitorial Services $              23.75
5/22/2024 Refund for Sumitt Event -$           223.18
05/23/2024 Vintage Properties Office Space Rent/Lease $         1,890.00

Page | 15



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
Expense Report Accrual Basis

May 2024
Purchase 

order date Vendor name Brief Description Amount
05/26/2024 AGP Video Recording $            250.00
05/26/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $            109.74
05/26/2024 Charter Communications/Spectrum Utilities - Internet $              44.99
05/26/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $            109.74
05/26/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $            109.74
05/26/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $            109.74
05/26/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $            109.74
05/26/2024 Brown Armstrong Accountancy Corp Audit Assistance $         1,900.00
05/27/2024 UBEO West LLC Copier Rental & Service $            722.79
05/28/2024 Twin Arbor Labs CESQG Refund $            121.00
05/28/2024 San Luis Obispo Police Department -  Alarm Unit Security Alarm Permit $              46.30
05/31/2024 Mountaineer IT Inc IT Services $         1,312.23
05/31/2024 Andrea Biniskiewicz Social Media Management $         2,560.00
05/31/2024 Alexa Heter Controller Services $         2,000.00

May-24 Wages & Benefits  $     54,395.54 
May-24 Credit Card Expenses  $       3,100.18 
May-24 Paychex Fees  $          749.10 
May-24 QuickBooks Credit Card Fees  $            46.92 
May-24 Gusto Fee  $              0.14 

 $   166,765.35  TOTAL EXPENSES 

Page | 16



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
Credit Card Expense Report

May 2024

Date Name Memo/Description Split Amount

05/02/2024
San Luis Obispo Chamber of 
Commerce 2024 EXPO @ The Expo

5050362 Services and Supplies:Public Outreach & 
Education 625.00 

05/02/2024 USPS Stamps 5050335 Services and Supplies:Postage 136.00 
05/03/2024 Webstaurant Order 97427986 5050255 Services and Supplies:Memberships 107.66 

05/03/2024 Real World Training
Quickbooks Training Monthly 
Subscription 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 29.95 

05/07/2024 Home Depot Office Keys 5050280 Services and Supplies:Office Supply Expenses 17.27 
05/14/2024 Microsoft Microsoft 365 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 513.00 
05/14/2024 Jotform INV-46480012021-1715707791 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 39.00 
05/14/2024 Microsoft Microsoft 365 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 6.00 
05/15/2024 Adobe Order AD01670300004CUS 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 76.30 

05/17/2024 CRRA Invoice 14272
5050370 Services and Supplies:Trainings and Seminar 
Registration 775.00 

05/17/2024 CRRA Invoice 14271
5050370 Services and Supplies:Trainings and Seminar 
Registration 775.00 

TOTAL CREDIT CARD CHARGES $     3,100.18 

Page | 17



IWMA Revenue Received-Cash Basis 
June 2024

Total
Income
   400 Non_Operation Revenue
      4150000 Interest Revenue 0.50 
      4200105 Grants 43,243.00 
   Total 400 Non_Operation Revenue $    43,243.50 
   435 Operation Revenue
      4350200 CESQG Payment 1,359.90 

      4350820 Solid Waste Management Fee 288,733.71 

      4350825 Landfill Tipping Fee Surcharge 15,384.12 
      4350955 Retail Take Back Fees 6,239.50 
   Total 435 Operation Revenue $  311,717.23 
   4550000 Other Revenue 181.23 
   Services 6,793.35 
   Unapplied Cash Payment Income -42,977.00 
Total Income $  318,958.31 

Page | 18



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
Expense Report-Accrual Basis June 2024

Purchase 
order date Vendor name Brief Description Amount

06/01/2024 San Luis Garbage Company Utilities - Trash Service $               43.69
06/01/2024 Astound Business Solutions Office Telephone Services $             295.78
06/01/2024 Richetti Water Solutions Reverse Osmosis System $               19.95
06/01/2024 CPSC Organizations $          1,603.00
06/01/2024 Rainscape Landscape Services $             125.00
06/01/2024 CPSC Organizations $          2,300.41

06/01/2024 Morro Bay Chamber of Commerce
Chamber of Commerce 
Membership $             295.00

06/01/2024 Morro Bay Chamber of Commerce
Chamber of Commerce 
Membership $             295.00

06/02/2024 Amazon Capital Services Inc. Office Supplies $             103.30
06/02/2024 Amazon Capital Services Inc. Office Supplies $             216.15
06/03/2024 Gaspar Soilbuilders LLC Compost Rebate Program  $          5,194.40
06/03/2024 Mid-Coast Fire HHW Fire System Maintenance $             275.01
06/03/2024 Cold Canyon Landfill SLO E-Waste Collection $          2,000.00
06/04/2024 Central Coast Landscape Products Compost Rebate Program $          2,051.00
06/04/2024 Mission Linen and Uniform Service Janitorial Services $               23.75
06/04/2024 Pacific Waste Services E-Waste Collection $          2,000.00
06/04/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $          1,367.40
06/04/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $          4,484.45
06/04/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $          3,286.75
06/04/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $          1,038.00
06/04/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $             140.03
06/04/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $             459.24
06/04/2024 Charter Communications/Spectrum Utilities - Internet $             129.99
06/05/2024 SDRMA EE Benefits $        10,079.42
06/05/2024 SDRMA EE Benefits $          5,251.16
06/06/2024 AGP Video Board Meeting Video Recording $             700.00
06/06/2024 Ruffoni Services Inc. Repair Services $             107.00
06/07/2024 Crisp Imaging Courier Services $               80.97
06/07/2024 ASAP Reprographics Copy/Print Services $               94.09
06/10/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $          5,691.00
06/10/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $          1,175.85
06/10/2024 Science Discovery Outreach and Education $        16,995.53
06/11/2024 Hart Impressions Business Cards $             153.34
06/11/2024 Hart Impressions Business Cards $               65.25

06/12/2024 Atlas Performance Industries, Inc.
HHW E-Waste Storage 
Containers $             130.00

06/12/2024 Atlas Performance Industries, Inc.
HHW E-Waste Storage 
Containers $             130.00

06/14/2024 Mid-Coast Fire HHW Fire System Maintenance $          1,292.93
06/14/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $             200.00
06/14/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $             633.82
06/14/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $               64.91
06/15/2024 Integrity Systems Office Security Monitoring $             105.00
06/15/2024 City of San Luis Obispo - Water Utilities - Water $               71.04
06/18/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $             140.03
06/18/2024 Nationwide Retirement PEHP EE Retirement - PEHP $             386.27
06/18/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $          1,367.40
06/18/2024 Nationwide Financial Private Sector Retirement (401A) EE Retirement - 401A $          3,771.89
06/18/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $          3,086.74
06/18/2024 Nationwide Retirement Solutions Standard 457 EE Retirement - 457 $          1,038.00
06/18/2024 Mid-Coast Fire HHW Fire System Maintenance $             300.03
06/18/2024 Mission Linen and Uniform Service Janitorial Services $               23.75

Page | 19



San Luis Obispo County IWMA
Expense Report-Accrual Basis June 2024

06/19/2024 Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & Green Legal Services $          6,792.50
06/20/2024 Executive Janitorial Janitorial Services $             295.00

06/21/2024 South County Chamber of Commerce
Chamber of Commerce 
Membership $             329.00

06/22/2024 Chicago Grade Landfill & Recycling E-Waste Collection $          2,000.00
06/23/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $             109.74
06/23/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $             109.74
06/23/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $             109.74
06/23/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $             109.74
06/23/2024 Marborg Industries HHW Restroom Rental $             109.74
06/26/2024 UBEO West LLC Copier Rental & Service $             615.12
06/26/2024 Charter Communications/Spectrum Utilities - Internet $               44.99
06/27/2024 Amazon Capital Services Inc. Office Supplies $             148.88
06/28/2024 GEO Plastics Reusable Oil Containers $          1,765.20
06/30/2024 Alexa Heter Controller Services $          2,000.00

Jun-24 Credit Card Charges  $        9,066.16 
Jun-24 Wages & Benefits  $      59,369.39 
Jun-24 Paychex Charges  $        1,129.00 
Jun-24 QB Processing Charges  $             48.13 
Jun-24 City of SLO Techinical Assistance Grant Awart  $      10,000.00 
Jun-24 Gusto Verification Fee Return  $               0.14 

$       175,034.93TOTAL EXPENSES

Page | 20



San Luis Obispo County IWMA Credit Card Expense Report 
June 2024

Date Name
Memo/Descriptio

n Split Amount

06/01/2024 Webstaurant Order 96373439
5050290 Services and Supplies:Other Minor 
Equipment 5,018.38 

06/01/2024
Discount Plastic Bags And Packaging 
LLC

Curbside Oil 
Pickup

5050290 Services and Supplies:Other Minor 
Equipment 3,011.80 

06/01/2024 USPS Stamps 5050335 Services and Supplies:Postage 136.00 

06/01/2024 Best Buy
5050280 Services and Supplies:Office Supply 
Expenses 54.36 

06/01/2024 Mailchimp 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 20.00 

06/01/2024 Trophy Hunters
5050280 Services and Supplies:Office Supply 
Expenses 13.01 

06/03/2024 Webstaurant
5050290 Services and Supplies:Other Minor 
Equipment 107.66 

06/03/2024 Real World Training 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 29.95 
06/12/2024 USPS Stamps 5050335 Services and Supplies:Postage 136.00 

06/14/2024 Microsoft 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 513.00 

06/14/2024 Microsoft 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 6.00 

06/25/2024 Mailchimp 5050070 Services and Supplies:Computer Software 20.00 

$    9,066.16 TOTAL CREDIT CARD CHARGES

Page | 21



Item No. 8 
August 14, 2024

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director

RE: Resolution 2024-08-01, Authorizing Signatures for Banking and 
Financial Services 

BACKGROUND: 

On April 12, 2023, the Board approved Resolution 2023-04-01, Authorizing Signatures 
for Banking and Financial Services. Resolution 2023-04-01 authorized the following list 
of signatories on the IWMA Union Bank Account: 

President, Jan Marx 
Executive Director, Peter Cron 
Deputy Director, Jordan Lane  

Resolution 2024-08-01 authorizes the following updated list of signatories to facilitate 
banking services with IWMA financial institutions: 

President, Robert Robert 
Executive Director, Peter Cron 
Deputy Director, Jordan Lane 

Signatories are authorized to sign on orders for payment or withdrawal money on behalf 
of the IWMA. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adopt Resolution 2024-08-01, updating the IWMA authorized signatories for banking 
and financial services. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Resolution 2024-08-01, Authorizing Signatures for Banking and Financial

Services

Page | 22



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO 
COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING 

SIGNATURES, INCLUDING DIGITAL SIGNATURES, FOR BANKING AND 
FINANCIAL SERVICES ON BEHALF OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 

INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 
("IWMA") desires to facilitate banking services with IWMA financial institutions including, but 
not limited to, US Bancorp Bank (collectively "Financial Institution(s)", excluding 
County of San Luis Obispo Auditor-Controller functions), and 

WHEREAS, the IWMA Board of Directors updates the authorized signatures from time 
to time based on designated staff and officers appointed from time to time, and determines it 
necessary and appropriate to change the authorized signatures for said Financial Institutions; and 

WHEREAS, the IWMA Board of Directors wishes to designate and authorize the 
undersigned signatories, and to supersede any previous signatory authorizations, on the IWMA 
Financial Institution account(s). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the San Luis Obispo County Integrated 
Waste Management Authority, as follows: 

1. The following persons are authorized to sign on orders for payment or withdrawal
of money on behalf of the IWMA: Robert Robert, President;  Peter Cron,
Executive Director and Jordan Lane,  Deputy Director. Any such authority
shall remain in force until revoked by written notice to the applicable Financial
Institution of the action taken by the Board of Directors of the San Luis Obispo
County Integrated Waste Management Authority. All prior authorizations are
superseded.

Name          Position                                       Signature

Robert Robert, President  _____________________________ 

 Peter Cron, Executive Director _____________________________ 

Jordan Lane, Deputy Director _____________________________ 

2. The Financial Institution is authorized and directed to honor and pay any checks,
drafts, or other orders for the payment of money withdrawing funds from any
account of the IWMA when bearing or purporting to bear the above-identified

Page | 23



signatures. The Financial Institution is authorized and directed to honor and to 
charge the IWMA by whom such actual or purported signatures were made, 
provided they resemble the signatures duly certified above and filed with the 
Financial Institution by the IWMA. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED by the Board of Luis Obispo County 
Integrated Waste Management Authority this _________day or _________2024 by the 
following vote: 

 Ayes: 

 Noes: 

 Abstain: 

 Absent: 
 
 
 

  
Robert Robert, Board President 
San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
 
 
 

   Daniel Cheung, Legal Counsel 
Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & Green LLP 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Sasha Del Giorgio, Clerk of the Board 
San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 
 

Page | 24



Item No. 9 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director 

RE: Resolution 2024-08-02, Amended and Restated Conflict of Interest 
Code 

BACKGROUND: 
The Fair Political Practices Commission (“FPPC”) is responsible for administering and 
enforcing the Political Reform Act. On September 15, 2022, this Board adopted 
Resolution No. 22-09-02 amending its Conflict of Interest Code and Exhibit A: List of 
Designated Positions to incorporate the current version of Section 18730 of 2 California 
Code of Regulations and to identify designated IWMA positions and applicable disclosure 
categories.  

The proposed amendment of Exhibit A removes “Program Coordinator” from the list of 
designated positions. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Adopt Resolution 2024-08-02, amending and restating the IWMA Conflict of Interest 
Code.

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Conflict of Interest Resolution No. 2024-08-02
B. Conflict of Interest Code, Exhibit A - Redline
C. Conflict of Interest Code, Exhibit A - Clean Version

Page | 25



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN LUIS OBISPO 
COUNTY INTEGRATED WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY AMENDING AND 

RESTATING ITS CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 
 

WHEREAS, the Political Reform Act, Government Code section 81000, et seq., requires 
that state and local public agencies adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes; and 

WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practices Commission ("FPPC") has adopted a model 
conflict of interest code for consideration by local governments, set forth at Title 2 California 
Code of Regulations section 18730, and to which future amendments may be adopted, after 
public notice and hearing, by the FPPC; and 

WHEREAS, the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 
("IWMA") Board of Directors adopted and incorporated by reference the terms of California 
Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 18730, and any amendments to it duly adopted by the 
FPPC, by Resolution No. 2022-09-02 on September 14, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 87306.5, the District is required to 
review its Conflict of Interest Code each even-numbered year and if a change to its code is 
necessary, the agency must submit an amended conflict of interest code to the reviewing body; 
and 

WHEREAS, the IWMA Board of Directors wishes to submit an amended and restated 
Conflict of Interest Code to the County Board of Supervisors, pursuant to Government Code 
section 87303; and 

WHEREAS, the IWMA Board of Directors wishes to adopt the revised Conflict of 
Interest Code attached hereto, which supersedes the Conflict of Interest Code last amended by 
Resolution on September 14, 2022. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the San Luis Obispo County Integrated 

Waste Management Authority as follows: 
 

1.  All previously adopted resolutions and policies regarding the creation of an IWMA 
Conflict of Interest Code are hereby superseded. 

2.  The terms of California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 18730, and any 
amendments to it duly adopted by the FPPC, are hereby adopted and incorporated by 
reference by and for the use of the IWMA and shall constitute the IWMA's Conflict of 
Interest Code for the designated positions described, and disclosure categories set 
forth, on Exhibit "A". 

3.  The list designating IWMA positions and establishing disclosure categories attached as 
Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted as the appendix of designated positions and disclosure 
categories to accompany section 18730, the IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code. 

4.  Individuals holding designated positions shall file statements of economic interest 
(FPPC Form 700) with the County Clerk-Recorder who will make the statements 
available for public inspection and copying. All statements will be retained by the 
County Clerk-Recorder. 

5. This Conflict of Interest Code shall not take effect until the San Luis Obispo County 
Board of Supervisors approves it in its capacity as code reviewing body under the 
Political Reform Act. The IWMA Executive Director, or designee, is hereby authorized 
and directed to submit a certified copy of this resolution with appendix to the Board of Page | 26



Supervisors and request approval of the Conflict of Interest Code. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Luis Obispo County 

Integrated Waste Management Authority this 14th day of August, 2024, upon the motion of 
____________________, seconded by __________________, and by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
 
 
 

  Robert Robert, President of the Board 

  San Luis Obispo County 
Integrated Waste Management Authority 

ATTEST:   

Clerk of the Board   

San Luis Obispo County   

Integrated Waste Management 
Authority 

  

Daniel Cheung, Legal Counsel 
Adamski Moroski Madden Cumberland & Green LLP 
 
 

Page | 27



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 

San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority  
Conflict of Interest Code 

Appendix of the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority  
Conflict of Interest Code  

LIST OF DESIGNATED POSITIONS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE  
IWMA'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

I.  DESIGNATED POSITIONS 

The persons occupying the positions listed below are hereby considered designated officers and 
positions and are deemed to make, or participate in the making of, decisions which may have a 
material effect on a financial interest. 

DESIGNATED POSITION ASSIGNED DISCLOSURE 
CATEGORIES 

Deputy Director 1, 2, 3 

Program Coordinator 1, 2, 3 

Legal Counsel 1, 2, 3 

Certain Contract Consultants 1, 2, 3 

 

II. OFFICIALS WHO MANAGE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS 

Disclosure is required of the following positions and shall be provided as stated in Government 
Code section 87200: 

DESIGNATED POSITION ASSIGNED DISCLOSURE 
CATEGORIES 

Board Member As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

Alternate Board Member As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

Page | 28



Executive Director As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

Category Number: 

Category 1: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all interests in real 
property located within, or not more than two miles outside, the County’s boundaries. 
This disclosure is not applicable to the person’s principal residence or real property 
interests with a fair market value of less than $2,000. 

Category 2: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all investments in, 
income from, and  business positions in business entities that have an interest in real 
property in the IWMA, or that have done business with the IWMA during the two years 
prior to the date of the person's disclosure statement, or that are likely to do business with 
IWMA during the next one-year period subsequent to the date of the person's disclosure 
statement. This disclosure category is not applicable to investments with a fair market 
value of less than $2,000. 

Category 3: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all investments in, and 
business positions in, and sources of personal and business entity income from entities 
that provide services, materials, equipment, or supplies of the type utilized by the IWMA 
and that are located within the County, including gifts, loans and travel payments. This 
disclosure category is not applicable to income received from the IWMA. 

For purposes of these categories, investment or interest means any investment or interest 
owned by the spouse, registered partner, or dependent child of a public official, by an 
agent on behalf of a public official, or by a business entity or trust in which the official, 
the official’s agents, spouse, registered partner, and dependent children own directly, 
indirectly, or beneficially a 10-percent interest or greater. 

 Consultants. "Consultant" means an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the 
IWMA, either: (A) Makes a governmental decision whether to (1) approve a rate, rule, or 
regulation; (2) adopt or enforce a law; (3) issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, 
license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
(4) authorize the IWMA to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type 
of contract that requires IWMA approval; (5) grant IWMA approval to a contract that 
requires IWMA approval and to which the IWMA is a party, or to the specifications for 
such a contract; (6) grant IWMA approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item; 
or (7) adopt or grant IWMA approval of policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency, 
or for any subdivision thereof; or (B) Serves in a staff capacity with the IWMA and in that 
capacity participates in making a governmental decision as defined in California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same 
duties for the IWMA that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a 
position specified in the IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code. (California Code of 
Regulations, Title 2, Section 18700.3) 

 “Consultants” are included in the list of designated positions and must disclose 
interests and investments in accordance with the broadest disclosure category in the 
IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code, subject to the following limitation:  The Executive 

Page | 29



Director may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a “consultant” and 
“designated position,” nevertheless is hired or retained to perform a range of duties that is 
limited in scope and therefore is not required to fully comply with the disclosure 
requirements described in this section.  The Executive Director’s written determination 
shall include a description of the consultant’s duties, and, based on that description, a 
statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  The written determination is a public 
record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as the 
IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code. 

 
 

Page | 30



RESOLUTION EXHIBIT A 

San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority  
Conflict of Interest Code 

Appendix of the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority  
Conflict of Interest Code  

LIST OF DESIGNATED POSITIONS SUBJECT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
IWMA'S CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

I. DESIGNATED POSITIONS

The persons occupying the positions listed below are hereby considered designated officers and 
positions and are deemed to make, or participate in the making of, decisions which may have a 
material effect on a financial interest. 

DESIGNATED POSITION ASSIGNED DISCLOSURE 
CATEGORIES 

Deputy Director 1, 2, 3 

Legal Counsel 1, 2, 3 

Certain Contract Consultants 1, 2, 3 

II. OFFICIALS WHO MANAGE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS

Disclosure is required of the following positions and shall be provided as stated in Government 
Code section 87200: 

DESIGNATED POSITION ASSIGNED DISCLOSURE 
CATEGORIES 

Board Member As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

Alternate Board Member As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

Executive Director As provided in Government Code § 
87200 

Page | 31



DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES 

Category Number: 

Category 1: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all interests in real 
property located within, or not more than two miles outside, the County’s boundaries. 
This disclosure is not applicable to the person’s principal residence or real property 
interests with a fair market value of less than $2,000. 

Category 2: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all investments in, 
income from, and  business positions in business entities that have an interest in real 
property in the IWMA, or that have done business with the IWMA during the two years 
prior to the date of the person's disclosure statement, or that are likely to do business with 
IWMA during the next one-year period subsequent to the date of the person's disclosure 
statement. This disclosure category is not applicable to investments with a fair market 
value of less than $2,000. 

Category 3: All persons in this disclosure category shall disclose all investments in, and 
business positions in, and sources of personal and business entity income from entities 
that provide services, materials, equipment, or supplies of the type utilized by the IWMA 
and that are located within the County, including gifts, loans and travel payments. This 
disclosure category is not applicable to income received from the IWMA. 

For purposes of these categories, investment or interest means any investment or interest 
owned by the spouse, registered partner, or dependent child of a public official, by an 
agent on behalf of a public official, or by a business entity or trust in which the official, 
the official’s agents, spouse, registered partner, and dependent children own directly, 
indirectly, or beneficially a 10-percent interest or greater. 

 Consultants. "Consultant" means an individual who, pursuant to a contract with the 
IWMA, either: (A) Makes a governmental decision whether to (1) approve a rate, rule, or 
regulation; (2) adopt or enforce a law; (3) issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, 
license, application, certificate, approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 
(4) authorize the IWMA to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided it is the type
of contract that requires IWMA approval; (5) grant IWMA approval to a contract that
requires IWMA approval and to which the IWMA is a party, or to the specifications for
such a contract; (6) grant IWMA approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item;
or (7) adopt or grant IWMA approval of policies, standards, or guidelines for the agency,
or for any subdivision thereof; or (B) Serves in a staff capacity with the IWMA and in that
capacity participates in making a governmental decision as defined in California Code of
Regulations, Title 2, Section 18702.2 or performs the same or substantially all the same
duties for the IWMA that would otherwise be performed by an individual holding a
position specified in the IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code. (California Code of
Regulations, Title 2, Section 18700.3)

“Consultants” are included in the list of designated positions and must disclose 
interests and investments in accordance with the broadest disclosure category in the 
IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code, subject to the following limitation:  The Executive 
Director may determine in writing that a particular consultant, although a “consultant” and 
“designated position,” nevertheless is hired or retained to perform a range of duties that is 
limited in scope and therefore is not required to fully comply with the disclosure 
requirements described in this section.  The Executive Director’s written determination 

Page | 32



shall include a description of the consultant’s duties, and, based on that description, a 
statement of the extent of disclosure requirements.  The written determination is a public 
record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as the 
IWMA's Conflict of Interest Code. 

Page | 33



Item No. 10 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director 

RE: Chicago Grade Transfer Station - NDFE 

BACKGROUND: 
Waste Connections, owner of the Chicago Grade and Cold Canyon landfills, is planning 
on operating a transfer station out of Chicago Grade Landfill. The transfer station will be 
used to transfer waste from Chicago Grade Landfill to Cold Canyon Landfill. Chicago 
Grade Landfill will remain open, but this effort will reduce operating costs and delay some 
need for expansion at Chicago Grade Landfill.  

The IWMA should update its Nondisposal Facility Element (NDFE) when siting a new 
nondisposal facility within its jurisdiction. This holds true for all nondisposal facilities that 
require a solid waste facility permit (SWFP), whether the facility is sited: 

• at an existing landfill or transfer station and included in the landfill’s/transfer
station’s permit; or

• at the landfill or transfer station and has a separate permit; or
• not at a landfill or transfer station and has a separate permit.

Before siting the facility, a conformance finding must be made first by the Local 
Enforcement Agency for the county, then corroborated by staff in CalRecycle’s 
Jurisdiction Product and Compliance unit (JPCU). A conformance finding is a verification 
that the location of a permitted disposal facility is identified in the appropriate County’s 
Siting Element (SE), or that a nondisposal facility is identified in the appropriate NDFE.  

When JPCU staff is requested by CalRecycle’s Permits Division to make a conformance 
finding related to a nondisposal facility, staff will look at the IWMA’s SE and NDFE to see 
if that facility is already identified in either document. If it is, CalRecycle staff will make the 
finding that the facility is in conformance, and no update to the NDFE will be necessary.  

However, if the nondisposal facility is not identified in either the NDFE or the SE, 
CalRecycle staff will make a finding that the proposed SWFP for that facility is not in 
conformance with the applicable planning document, and the NDFE will need to be 
updated.The IWMA will then proceed with updating the NDFE by: 

1. Preparing facility information.
2. Ensuring any local public process requirements are complied with.
3. Providing updated NDFE information to the agency’s CalRecycle Local Assistance

and Market Development representative.

Page | 34



4. Providing a copy of the updated NDFE information to the local task force. 
5. Ensuring that CalRecycle appends the updated information to the existing NDFE 

upon receipt. 
 

AB 341 eliminated the regulatory requirement for public noticing or adoption of a facility 
update by resolution at a public hearing. Staff is presenting this item for information only. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Review and discuss the addition of the Chicago Grade Transfer Station to the Non-
Disposal Facility Element for the County of San Luis Obispo. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. Chicago Grade NDFE Amendment  

Page | 35



 
July 25, 2024  
  
EMAIL ONLY  
  
Esmeralda Alvarado -CalRecycle  
Environmental Scientist  
Local Assistance & Market Development  
Esmeralda.Alvarado@calrecycle.ca.gov 
 
Dear Esmeralda Alvarado:  
  
Please find the latest update to the Non-Disposal Facility Element for the Chicago Grade Transfer Station for 
the County of San Luis Obispo.  
   

Name of Facility  Chicago Grade Transfer Station (40-AA-0052)  
Type of Facility  Transfer Station 
Facility Capacity  99.99 tons per day, 35,900 tons annual maximum  
Anticipated Diversion Rate  Anticipated diversion activity will be minimal. 

Participating jurisdictions  Unincorporated San Luis Obispo County and the SLO County IWMA member 
jurisdictions  

Location of Facility  Unincorporated San Luis Obispo County  
Facility location description  2290 Homestead Road, Templeton, CA 93465  

  
If you have any questions or need any additional information, please feel free to contact me at (805) 782-8530 
or pcron@IWMA.com.  
 
 
  
Sincerely,  
 
Peter Cron 
Executive Director 
870 Osos St San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
Phone: 805-781-5952  
 
Attachment: Maps of site 
 
 
 
 

Page | 36

mailto:Esmeralda.Alvarado@calrecycle.ca.gov


AG

RR

RR

City

AG

RR

RR

AG

RL

RR

RL

HWY 41

EL POMAR

ALM
OND

TEMPLETON

LU
PI

NE

TRAFFIC

DANA

MOSS

AKRO
N

PO
C

O

RIVER

DOLORES

H
O

M
ESTEAD

JOHN

SY
C

AM
O

R
E

EU
R

EK
A

HILLCREST
RANCHO

SPRING CREEK

TORI

M
IRAM

O
N

SA
N 

JA
CI

NT
O

VID
A

BLACK HAWK

PASEO DEL LAGO

NOGALES

BA
GGIN

S 
HI

LL

SA
N 

AN
SE

LM
O

HIGH GROVE

CHIC
O

RIO VISTA

DEL RIO

YE
RB

A

EL VERANO

ARENA ESTRADA

TAM
ARA

LOBOS

ROSITA ROSARIO

TRAILS END

VE
NI

CE

R
ED

O
N

D
O

OVERHILL

ORILLAS

VI
SC

AN
O

SHORT

G
A

N
C

H
O

TRIPLE CROWN

DU
LZ

UR
A

VI
A 

VI
ST

A

M
AN

AN
IT

A

U
N

N
AM

E
D

RAPTO
R R

ID
GE

NAVIDAD

LI
LS

VIA DEL SUENO

ROCKY CANYON

TR
AD

EN

ALAM
O

R
ED

 F
O

XCIELO GRANDE
CR

ES
TO

N 
EU

RE
KA

FER
R

O
 C

AR
R

IL

G
O

LD
 FIN

C
H

RANCHO VIEJO

Q
U

A
IL H

O
LLO

W

VI
A 

ES
TR

EL
LA

SUMMIT

ROAD RUNNER

GREY FOX

ARENA

HIG
H G

RO
VE

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

4

LANDUSE MAP
FACILITIES PLAN

CHICAGO GRADE LANDFILL
2290 HOMESTEAD RD.

TEMPLETON, CA FIGURE 2

022036.00

D. ZAITZ

C. COLES

6/4/2024

1 inch = 0.33 miles
SCALE:

DATE:

PROJECT NO:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

Legend
1 Mile Radius
Roads
Property Boundary

Land Use Designation
AG
City
RL
RR

Z:\p\022036.00_Chicago Grade LF\landuse.mxd

0 0.5 1 1.50.25
Miles

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community

Land Use Designation Descriptions
AG Agriculture
City Urban Lands
RL Large Lot Rural
RR Small Lot Rural

Page | 37



HO
M

ESTEAD RD.

SOUTH EL POMAR RD.

LANDFILL ENTRANCE

SHOP/OFFICE

EQUIPMENT STORAGE BARN

SEDIMENT BASIN #1

SEDIMENT BASIN #2

100' LANDFILL BUFFER

77.07 ACRE PERMITTED
DISPOSAL AREA (APPROX.)

100' LANDFILL BUFFER

LANDFILL PARCEL

BUFFER AREA

LANDFILL PARCEL

BUFFER AREA

LANDFILL PARCEL
BUFFER AREA

APPROXIMATE LANDFILL
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

MAIN WATER WELL
15-18 GPM

20,000 GAL. TANK
CAPACITY (HIGHEST
POINT ON SITE)

20,000 GAL. TANK

FIRE WATER TANK

HHW AREA

APPROXIMATE WATERLINE

APPROXIMATE WATERLINE

MODULE 1
(EXISTING)MODULE 2

(EXISTING)

MODULE 3
(EXISTING)

MODULE 4
(EXISTING)

MODULE 7
(FUTURE)

MODULE 6C
(FUTURE)

MODULE 6B
(EXISTING)

PERMITTED WASTE LIMIT (APPROX.)

MODULE 6A
(FUTURE)

 SCALEHOUSE

INFERRED PROPERTY
BOUNDARY

EXISTING TIRE PROCESSING
(TO BE REDUCED OR ELIMINATED)

TRANSFER PAD AND LOADING
AREA. (SEE FIGURE 4)

EXISTING WATER TANKS

FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER TANK

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

PROPOSED FLARE
LOCATION

LANDFILL GREEN WASTE PROCESSING
AREA (APPROXIMATE)

FIRE HYDRANT

FIRE HYDRANT

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SCALE:PROJECT NO:

ENGINEERS & GEOLOGISTS

DATE:
Z. MORGAN

C.COLES

022036.00 1" = 400'

6/4/2024

p:\022036.00_chicago grade lf\transfer_staion_location_map.dwg  Z.H.M.  6/4/2024

Feet
0 400 800

LEGEND
APPROXIMATE LANDFILL
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE PERMITTED
DISPOSAL BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE MODULE
BOUNDARY

APPROXIMATE WATERLINE

Page | 38

AutoCAD SHX Text
& ASSOCIATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAWRENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACILITIES PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHICAGO GRADE LANDFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2290 HOMESTEAD RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPLETON, CA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIGURE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSFER FACILITIES LOCATION MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHOTO DATE: 2/2021



Item No. 11 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director 

RE: Hamlin Creative 

BACKGROUND: 
On March 6, 2024 the IWMA inquired with Hamlin Creative about content they had 
developed for agencies involved in waste management. Hamlin Creative regularly works 
with non-profit organizations to develop recycling industry videos with an intent of driving 
social behavior changes and community engagement. Through a series of introductory 
meetings, and after learning about the IWMA, Hamlin Creative suggested ideas of how 
the IWMA could: 

1. Reach more consituents with pertinent recycling information.
2. Improve awareness of the IWMA.
3. Contribute to compliance goals for outreach.

Hamlin Creative proposed three storyboard ideas for how to best engage the 
communities of San Luis Obispo County. Each storyboard features local people and 
places of San Luis Obispo County. 

Video 1: 
Recycling Recovery 

Using a SnorriCam, follow a recyclable item from use to 
reuse. Follow a bottle, for example, on a journey to 
create an immersive experience for the viewer. A split-
screen will show what happens if a bottle goes into a 
curbside recycling bin compared to that same bottle 
going into the landfill. 

Video 2: 
Organic Waste 
Recovery 

Using a SnorriCam, follow a compostable item (meat, 
cheese, bread) in a split-screen from use to reuse. 
Portray hillsides and vineyards of San Luis Obispo 
County throughout video to leverage feelings of 
familiarity with community members. Illustrate how food 
waste is thrown away and eventually applied to 
vineyards as soil amendment. 

Video 3: 
Myths of Recycling 

Feature real people of San Luis Obispo County reciting 
common misconceptions about recycling. Feature solid 
waste industry professionals from the area to dispell 
those myths. Incorporate recycling truck drivers, sorters 

Page | 39



at the Materials Recovery Facility, sorting robots, forklift 
drivers, and end-of-life stakeholders in video. 

 
Scope of Work 
Under the proposed Hamlin Creative agreement, the services rendered to the IWMA are 
pre-production, production, and post-production of three San Luis Obispo County based 
videos and a library of still images to be used in the agency’s outreach for perpetuity. The 
videos will be appropriately sized to a commercial length and prepared for public 
distribution. Hamlin Creative has the ability to start production as soon as September 
2024. 
 
Promotion of Materials 
On June 4, 2024 the IWMA was approached by local news broadcasting company KSBY. 
KSBY has capacity to feature new commercials and is interested in a partnership with the 
IWMA. Should the Board of Directors permit entering into agreement with Hamlin 
Creative, the content developed with the video production agency would be promoted 
through KSBY broadcasting, and has the potential to make over 622,000 impressions on 
people living from Carpinteria to San Miguel.  
 
Staff understands that the unique nature of Hamlin Creative’s recycling outreach 
expertise and experience creating videos for non-profit organizations may create a 
justification for single source procurement. Additionally, funding for Hamlin Creative 
content creation is an approved item of the IWMA’s 2024-2025 SB 1383 Local Assistance 
Grant funding and would therefore be paid fully with grants. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Authorize the Board President to sign agreement with Hamlin Creative for video creation 
and production of recycling and composting messaging consistent with our mission and 
goals. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
$130,840.00* 
 

Expense Item Cost Grant Revenue 
Hamlin Creative 3-video series 120,840.00  

Hamlin Creative Footage Library 10,000.00  

Grant Funding available for Hamlin Creative 
content development 

 227,835.00 

Total 130,840.00 227,835.00 
 
*Funded from the SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant Fund pool of $1,430,723.00.  

Page | 40



 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. Draft Hamlin Creative Agreement 
B. Hamlin Creative Memo to the Board of Directors 

Page | 41



An agreement between

San Luis Obisbo County - IWMA

(Herein called “The Client”)
and

Hamlin Creative LLC dba HAMLIN

Prepared for
Peter Cron / Jordan Lane / Ashley Kuder / Michael Williams

Prepared on 6-19-24

1. Project Overview

HAMLIN to produce video series for San Luis Obisbo County - IWMA to focus on recycling and bringing awareness to recycling 
resources available to residents in SLO county.

In-scope Services by Phase

● Pre-Production
○ Script development, assemble crew, virtual location scouting, casting, permitting, scheduling

● Production
○ On-site crew including: EP, Director, DP, AC, Gaffer, Grip, Audio, Props, Prod. Manager, PA

Post-Production
○ The Lifecycle of a Recyclable Item
○ The Lifecycle of a Compostable Item
○ Myths of Recycling
○ Footage Library

Assumptions/Client Responsibilities

The client is responsible to ensure the items below are satisfied for the execution of the in-scope services outlined 
above. HAMLIN will not be liable for any failure to execute on the in-scope services or failure to deliver any deliverables 
if the following items are not completed.

● Client will work with HAMLIN to secure locations
● Client will provide suggestions for county personnel to participate in production
● County Recycling truck
● County Recycling Bins / Carts
● Client will assist with location for use of Recycling truck
● Access to County Landfill
● Access to County Compost Facility
● Access to County Material Recycling Facility (MRF)
● Assist HAMLIN with securing permits to County lands or state lands as requested
● Any Must-Have shot lists
● Endpage information: i.e. “Call to Action” (CTA), Website information, Taglines, Photography, Logos

Deliverables

The following deliverables will be produced as a result of this engagement:
● The Lifecycle of a Recyclable Item
● The Lifecycle of a Compostable Item
● Myths of Recycling
● Footage Library

Out of Scope Services

All services not explicitly stated in this Scope of Work are assumed to be out of scope. Any specific services to note the 
exclusion of may be outlined below.

DRAFT

Page | 42



2. Pricing

The following estimated pricing applies for the services outlined above:
● Pre-Production: $15,540
● Production: $63,130
● Post-Production: $27,220
● Travel:  $14,950 (estimated)

Estimated Total: $120,840

*Additional cost for Photography can be added to this quote for $10,000

3. Terms and Conditions

This project is subject to the following Terms and Conditions:

Applicable Services

All Services between The Company and The Client will be defined on a separate Statement of Work and are subject to 
the various Pricing information and terms outlined in this document and on any Statements of Work, which said 
Statements of work are incorporated as if fully set forth herein.

Unless otherwise noted, all produced deliverables include the initial creation of the content by and two (2) rounds of 
edits via notes provided by the Client. An edit round consists of the Client delivering any note(s) to modify deliverables 
to The Company, our post-production team executing those notes, and The Company returning a revised deliverable to 
The Client. Edit rounds exclude any notes that change the overall scope of the deliverable at the discretion of The 
Company. Additional rounds will exceed the original scope of services.

Payment

● Time & Materials: Unless otherwise noted in the Statement of Work, all projects between The Client and The 
Company will be billed on a time and materials basis. The price presented on any Statement of Work documents 
is presented as an estimate.

○ An invoice for a deposit of 25% of the total estimated fees may be issued at the inception of the project
○ Additional project fees will be billed as work is completed

■ If the work is completed within a calendar month, the total fees for the project minus any deposit 
will be billed at the completion of the project

■ If the work is completed over multiple months, the total fees for the project in that month will be 
invoiced. The deposit may be treated as a credit on the client’s account, so no invoices will be 
issued until that credit has been satisfied.

● Fixed Price: Projects may be billed on a fixed price basis. For a project to be billed as a fixed-price project, it 
must be designated as such on the Project’s Statement of Work.

○ All travel and other expenses in fixed-price projects are estimates. Actuals for travel and expenses will 
be billed as incurred.

○ The first 50% of the balance of the project (minus travel and other expenses) will be invoiced at the 
signing of the Statement of Work.

DRAFT

Page | 43



○ The remainder of the project fees will be due at the completion of the project.
● Invoice Terms: All invoices issued will be due on a NET-30 basis from the invoice date
● Forms of Payment

○ Check/Cash: These can be made payable, mailed, and/or delivered to: 
Hamlin Creative LLC, 270 Rockbridge Rd, Mills River, NC 28759

○ Other Payment Arrangements: Other payment arrangements may be made on a case-by-case basis if 
both parties agree to an alternative payment method.

● Late Payments: The Client may be charged an amount on overdue invoices.
○ 0-5 days late: An additional 5% will be added to the invoice amount
○ 5+ days late: An additional 1% will be added to the invoice total for each day it is overdue.

● Per Diem: The Company uses the General Services Administration's per diem rates as the basis for our meals & 
incidentals based on the location of the shoot. The Client agrees to accept these as the basis of The Company’s 
underlying costs. 

● Price and Term Validity: The above-outlined terms & conditions are valid for 15 days from the date of 
preparation.

Copyright

●  Ownership: All campaigns, trademarks, service marks, slogans, artwork, written materials, drawings, 
photographs, graphic materials, or other materials that are subject to copyright, trademark, patent, or similar 
protection (collectively, the “Work Product”) produced by Company are the property of the Client provided: such 
Work Product is accepted by the Client after being proposed by Company; and (2) Client has paid all fees and 
costs associated with creating and, where applicable, producing such Work Product. Work Product that does not 
meet the two foregoing conditions shall remain Company’s property, except for all trademarks, service marks, 
slogans, artwork, written materials, drawings, photographs, graphic materials, film, music, transcriptions, or 
other materials that belong to the Client. Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is understood that Company may, on 
occasion, license materials from third parties for inclusion in Work Product. In such circumstances, ownership of 
such licensed materials remains with the licensor at the conclusion of the term of the license. In such instances, 
Client agrees that it remains bound by the terms of such licenses. Company will keep Client informed of any 
such limitations.

● Self-Promotion: Notwithstanding the foregoing, The Company retains, and the Client so grants, the rights to 
use all Work Product and media for self-promotional purposes unless otherwise determined once the final 
deliverables have been completed and approved by The Client.

Client’s Duties

Generally, the Client represents and warrants that:

● it has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and that by doing so it will not be in breach of any 
obligation to a third party;

● the materials Client provides to Company will not infringe third party intellectual property rights; and
● the materials Client provides to Company will comply with applicable laws.

DRAFT

Page | 44



Copyright Indemnity: The Company assumes that The Client has permission from the rightful owner to use any content 
that is provided for inclusion in the deliverables. The Client will hold harmless, protect, and defend The Company from 
any claim or suit arising from the use of such elements. Client agrees to indemnify and hold Company harmless with 
respect to any claims or actions by third parties against Company based upon materials furnished by Client or where 
material created by Company is modified by Client. Information or data obtained by Company from Client to substantiate 
claims made in advertising shall be deemed to be “materials furnished by Client.” Client further agrees to  indemnify and 
hold Company harmless with respect to any death or personal injury claims or actions arising from the use of Client’s 
products or services.

Failure to provide assets: If materials needed to create Deliverables are not supplied by The Client in a timely manner, 
The Company will not be held liable for failure to meet such deadlines and will not be considered in breach of the 
Agreement.

Miscellaneous Terms

4. Whole Agreement: This Statements of Work constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and supersedes 
and extinguishes all previous drafts, agreements, arrangements, and understandings between them, whether written 
or oral, relating to this subject matter except. Each party acknowledges that in entering into this agreement it does 
not rely on, and shall have no remedies in respect of any representation or warranty (whether made innocently or 
negligently) that is not set out in this agreement. 

5. Modification, Replacement, Revocation: This Statement of Work may be replaced, modified, edited, updated, or 
revoked at any time by mutual agreement of The Company and The Client. Any projects begun under the terms of 
this agreement shall be completed under those terms unless otherwise agreed to by both the Company and the 
Client.

6. Waiver: The Company may also grant variances on a project-by-project basis to any or all of the terms of this 
agreement. Any variance granted on a single project shall in no way jeopardize the validity of this agreement. 

7. Cancelation: If the Client alone would like to revoke this agreement, a 30-day notice shall be required unless 
otherwise agreed to by both the Company and the Client. If The Client solely wants to cancel a project, The Client 
will be billed for the value of any completed or partially completed work performed that is unpaid, also including any 
hard costs, the Company has paid to other vendors. 

8. Survival: In the event of cancellation by either party, all terms survive the termination of this agreement except the 
Company’s duty to deliver Services and the Client’s duty to pay for Services that have not been rendered. 

9. Ghosting: If no response is received from The Client in a 180-day period after an inquiry has been made, this 
Statement of Work will be considered immediately terminated and the above provisions will be forced on any current 
and active projects.

10. Indemnity: The Company agrees to indemnify The Client against all damages caused by our negligence in the 
performance of professional services covered by this document. The Client agrees to indemnify The Company, its 
representatives, assignees, contractors, and other agents against all damages caused by The Client’s negligent acts.

11. Limitations of Liability: Except for breaches of confidentiality or indemnification claims,  in no event will either party 
be liable under or in connection with this Agreement for any loss of actual or anticipated income or profits, loss of 
goodwill or reputation, loss of anticipated savings, or any indirect or consequential loss or damage of any kind 
howsoever arising and whether caused by tort (including negligence), breach of contract or otherwise, whether or not 
such loss or damage is foreseeable, foreseen or known.

DRAFT

Page | 45



12. Arbitration: If a disagreement arises from this Statement of Work, both parties agree to submit to binding arbitration 
by an agreed-upon third party. 

13. Venue and Jurisdiction: Regardless of the place of signing of the Agreement, The Client agrees that for purposes of 
legal venue, this Agreement was entered into in Henderson County, North Carolina, United States and any dispute 
will be litigated or arbitrated in Henderson County, North Carolina, United States.

14. Force Majeure: If The Company cannot perform tasks specific for any specific project due to a fire or other casualty, 
strike, act of God or other cause(s) beyond the control of the parties, any necessary collected fees The Client will be 
returned, minus travel expenses already arranged, but The Company will have no further liability with respect to any 
Agreement. This limitation on liability will also apply in the event that any materials are damaged in processing, lost 
through malfunction, lost in any form of transmission, or otherwise lost or damaged without fault of ourselves or any 
of our agents, employees or assistants. In the event The Company fail to perform for any other reason, we will not be 
liable for any amount in excess of the Agreement.

15. Savings: In the event that any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement are declared invalid or unenforceable by 
any Court of competent jurisdiction or any government agency having jurisdiction over the subject matter of this 
Agreement, the remaining terms and provisions that are not affected thereby shall remain in full force and effect. In 
the event that any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement are so declared invalid or unenforceable, Company 
and Union will promptly meet to negotiate substitute terms and provisions for those declared invalid.

5. Execution

I have read, understood, and agree to the scope of this Agreement and agree to the services outlined.

Client Signature: ______________________________________________________________

Print Name:  ______________________________________  Date:  _____________________

Company Signature: ______________________________________________________

Print Name:  ______________________________________  Date:  ____________________

DRAFT

Page | 46



HAMLIN Creative / San Luis Obispo - IWMA Video project

HAMLIN Creative is a production company that is uniquely situated to create content
within the world of recycling. Since 2018, HAMLIN Creative has been producing
content for the non-profit organization The Recycling Partnership along with states &
communities TRP partners with. The Recycling Partnership is a leader in the world of
recycling and HAMLIN Creative has been creating content with TRP for a wide range of
purposes. We have not only produced pieces educating communities on why to recycle
but also produced video content that shares the success of programs instituted across
the country. HAMLIN Creative has produced:

● Testimonial pieces focusing on recycling initiatives
● Documentary pieces highlighting success in specific communities
● Animation pieces that support broader branding and recycling messaging
● Corporate videos highlighting partner initiatives
● Commercial pieces that have pushed The Recycling Partnership brand

HAMLIN Creative is dedicated to the world of recycling and we understand the
challenges, but also the importance of recycling to keep our communities beautiful.

We are excited to partner with San Luis Obispo & IWMA to promote and increase
awareness of recycling in your community.

Page | 47



Item No. 12 
August 14, 2024 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

Peter Cron, Executive Director 

Presentation of Final Draft Audit for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 

BACKGROUND: 
The Fiscal Year Audit for 2022/2023 (FY 22/23) was completed by Brown Armstrong 
Accountancy Corporation on July 2, 2024. Brown Armstrong gave their opinion: 

The financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes 
in financial position. 

Highlights 
• The Authority started FY 22/23 in a net position of $3,380,743 down $345,287

from the previous year. A spending freeze was in place in response to a delay in
the adoption of an increased Solid Waste Management Fee.

• On July 1st, 2022, the Solid Waste Management Fee was increased to a universal
5.4% of gross hauler revenue from 2% of gross revenue collected from
commercial hauling, $0.30 per month per residential account charged less than
$50 per month, and 2% for residential customers charged more than $50 per
month. In FY 22/23, Solid Waste Management Fees outpaced projections,
providing the agency with a revenue that exceeded the budget.

• Other revenue including the $3.00 per ton Landfill Tipping Fee Surcharge and
billings to outside agencies remained consistent with previous years and within the
budgeted projections.

• The Authority also conducted a Management Review through HF&H that identified
areas where operational efficiencies could be implemented to save on costs.
These efficiencies were implemented without any drop in the services provided.

• Effective July 1, 2023, the Authority temporarily lowered its Solid Waste
Management Fee from 5.4% to 4.4% in response to increased revenue.

• The Authority continues to focus on SB 1383 compliance efforts and reporting on
the forty-five programs that the Authority manages for its member jurisdictions.
These programs are categorized into three expense categories: (1) SRRE-based
Diversion Programs, (2) Public Education and Outreach, (3) administrative costs.

Page | 48



Condensed Statement of Net Position as of June 30, 2023 

2023 2022 
Increase 

(Decrease) 

Assets 
Current and Other 
Assets  $      4,850,998   $      3,088,286   $      1,762,712  
Capital and Right-to Use 
Assets  $       628,656   $      702,733   $      (74,077) 

Total Assets  $      5,479,654   $      3,791,019   $      1,688,635  

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities  $       302,481   $      395,022   $      (92,541) 
Long-Term Liabilities  $     17,847   $      15,254   $     2,593  

Total Liabilities  $       320,328   $      410,276   $      (89,948) 

Net Position 
Net Investment in 
Capital Assets  $     628,656  $      702,733   $      (74,077) 
Unrestricted  $      4,530,670   $      2,678,010   $      1,852,660  

Total Net Position  $      5,159,326   $      3,380,743   $      1,778,583  

The SLO County IWMA is in a strong budgetary position that has enabled the agency to 
reduce our solid waste management fees while continuing to meet core objectives. 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Review, discuss, and file the San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management 
Authority FY 22/23 Governance Letter and FY 22/23 Financial Statements. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Governance Letter
B. Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Financial Statements

Page | 49



Page | 50



Page | 51



Page | 52



Page | 53



Page | 54



Page | 55



Page | 56



Page | 57



Page | 58



Page | 59



Page | 60



Page | 61



Page | 62



Page | 63



Page | 64



Page | 65



Page | 66



Page | 67



Page | 68



Page | 69



Page | 70



Page | 71



Page | 72



Page | 73



Page | 74



Page | 75



Page | 76



Page | 77



Page | 78



Item No. 13 
August 14, 2024 

TO: San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority 

FROM: Peter Cron, Executive Director 

RE: Consideration of Approval of Compensation Increase for Unrepresented 
Employees 

BACKGROUND: 
The San Luis Obispo County Integrated Waste Management Authority employees are an 
unrepresented bargaining unit. Annually, staff meets with the Executive Director to 
propose modifications or changes to the compensation plan. This proposal is presented 
to the IWMA Board of Directors for comments, questions, and consideration.  

Cost-of-Living 
Each year an automatic cost-of-living increase is discussed during the budget and, if 
approved, applied to all classes effective July 1st. This cost-of-living increase is based on 
the average of the Los Angeles and San Francisco U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers not seasonally adjusted taken from the 
12-month percent change from the month of April. This year the cost-of-living increase
taken from April 2023 to April 2024 is 3.8%.

Health Insurance Contribution 

Current Contribution 2023/2024:  $1,650.00 
Proposed Contribution 2024/2025: $1,810.00 

Health insurance costs have risen 28% over the past three years. On July 12, 2023, the 
Board approved a 10% increase to the agency’s health insurance contribution. To 
minimize the impact of health insurance increases, staff asks for a 10% increase in the 
IWMA’s cafeteria plan.   

SDRMA HEALTH INSURANCE RATES 2021 – 2024 

Employee +1 Rates Percent Increase 

Plan 2021 2022 2023 2024 21-22 22-23 23-24 21-24 
Gold $1,741.73  $1,799.41  $1,970.39   $ 2,274.24  3.31% 9.50% 15.40% +28.21% 

Silver $1,255.57  $1,296.77  $1,420.37   $ 1,638.73  3.28% 9.53% 15.40% +28.21% 

Page | 79



 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
Approve a 3.8% cost-of-living compensation increase for unrepresented employees and 
10% increase in the cafeteria plan contribution to keep pace with rising health insurance 
costs; and direct staff to continue exploring other options amid the rising costs of health 
care. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Proposed Salary and Benefits 24/25  $              1, 216,374.74  
Current Salary and Benefits 23/24  $              1,182,546.61  
   
   $                     33,828.13  

 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

A. Current Salary Table 
B. Proposed Salary Table 
C. Salary Comparison 
D. SDRMA History 

 

Page | 80



Current Salary Schedule
Factor

Executive 
Director Deputy Director

Program 
Manager

Management 
Analyst

Program 
Coordinator

Clerk of the 
board Admin Analyst  Total/ year 

Salary / Hourly Salary Salary Salary Hourly Hourly Hourly Hourly
Management (Y/N) Y Y Y N N N N
# of Positions Apprvoed by Board 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Base Compensation                 125,573.76          86,640.08                     37.60                       31.72                   34.98                       34.90 
Step Assumed for Budget A  d c C b d b

Annual Cost at A             176,200.00          60.37                 125,573.76        41.65          86,640.08        37.60 78,208.00           31.72      65,977.60             34.98      72,758.40         34.90      72,592.00             
Annual Cost at B             176,200.00          63.39                 131,852.45        43.74          90,972.08        39.48             82,118.40 33.31                    69,276.48 36.73                76,396.32 36.65                    76,221.60 
Annual Cost at C             176,200.00          66.56                 138,445.07        45.92          95,520.68        41.45             86,224.32 34.97                    72,740.30 38.57                80,216.14 38.48                    80,032.68 
Annual Cost at D             176,200.00          69.89                 145,367.32        48.22        100,296.71        43.53             90,535.54 36.72                    76,377.32 40.49                84,226.94 40.40                    84,034.31 
Annual Cost at E             176,200.00          73.38                 152,635.69        50.63        105,311.55        45.70             95,062.31 38.56                    80,196.18 42.52                88,438.29 42.42                    88,236.03 

Annual Pay - Budgeted Assumption  $        176,200.00  $             145,367.32  $      95,520.68  $         86,224.32  $           69,276.48  $       84,226.94  $           76,221.60 733,037.35$         
-$                       

Health Ins, Dental, Vision-EE 1,650$            19,800.00             19,800.00                  19,800.00         19,800.00           19,800.00             19,800.00         19,800.00             138,600.00$         
Life, EAP, LTD 1,168.20               1,012.32                    500.00              500.00                 500.00                   1,012.32            500.00                   5,192.84$             
Total Insurance Benefit 20,968.20$           20,812.32$               20,300.00$      20,300.00$         20,300.00$           20,812.32$       20,300.00$           143,792.84$         
Total Reimbursement Benefits 1,080.00$             480.00$                     480.00$            480.00$               480.00$                 480.00$             480.00$                3,960.00$             

Total Retirement 52,435.86$           42,547.58$               31,815.60$      29,814.10$         26,165.23$           29,384.06$       27,660.51$           239,822.94$         
-$                       

Social Security Wages 160,200.00   190,700.00           145,367.32               95,520.68        86,224.32           69,276.48             84,226.94         76,221.60             747,537.35$         
Medicare Wages Addition >200K 0.90% -$                       -$                           -$                  -$                     -$                       -$                   -$                       -$                       
Total Tax 13,201.55$           11,624.60$               7,811.33$        7,100.16$           5,299.65$             6,947.36$         6,334.95$             58,319.61$           

Work Comp Insurance .58/100 0.0058 1,021.96               843.13                       554.02              500.10                 401.80                   488.52               442.09                   4,251.62$             
Modification Factor 85% 868.67                   -             716.66                       -           470.92              -           425.09                 -           341.53                   -           415.24               -           375.77                   3,613.87$             

TOTAL Salary and Benefits 264,754.28$        -$          221,548.49$             -$        156,398.53$    -$        144,343.66$       -$        121,862.89$         -$        142,265.92$     -$        131,372.84$        1,182,546.61$     

Page | 81



Proposed Salary Schedule
Factor

Executive 
Director Deputy Director

Program 
Manager

Management 
Analyst

Program 
Coordinator

Clerk of the 
board Admin Analyst  Total/ year 

Salary / Hourly Salary Salary Salary Hourly Hourly Hourly Hourly
Management (Y/N) Y Y Y N N N N
# of Positions Apprvoed by Board 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Base Compensation 1.038             176,200.00                 125,573.76          86,640.08                     37.60                       31.72                   34.98                       34.90 
Step Assumed for Budget A  c c C a d b

Annual Cost at A             182,895.60          62.67                 130,345.56        43.24          89,932.40        39.03 81,179.90           32.93      68,484.75             36.31      75,523.22         36.23      75,350.50             
Annual Cost at B             182,895.60          65.80                 136,862.84        45.40          94,429.02        40.98             85,238.90 34.57                    71,908.98 38.12                79,299.38 38.04                    79,118.02 
Annual Cost at C             182,895.60          69.09                 143,705.98        47.67          99,150.47        43.03             89,500.84 36.30                    75,504.42 40.03                83,264.35 39.94                    83,073.93 
Annual Cost at D             182,895.60          72.54                 150,891.28        50.05        104,107.99        45.18             93,975.89 38.12                    79,279.64 42.03                87,427.57 41.94                    87,227.63 
Annual Cost at E             182,895.60          76.17                 158,435.85        52.55        109,313.39        47.44             98,674.68 40.02                    83,243.62 44.13                91,798.94 44.03                    91,589.01 

Annual Pay - Budgeted Assumption  $        182,895.60  $             143,705.98  $      99,150.47  $         89,500.84  $           68,484.75  $       87,427.57  $           79,118.02 750,283.23$         
-$                       

Health Ins, Dental, Vision-EE 1,815$            21,780.00             21,780.00                  21,780.00         21,780.00           19,800.00             21,780.00         21,780.00             150,480.00$         
Life, EAP, LTD 1,168.20               1,012.32                    500.00              500.00                 500.00                   1,012.32            500.00                   5,192.84$             
Total Insurance Benefit 22,948.20$           22,792.32$               22,280.00$      22,280.00$         20,300.00$           22,792.32$       22,280.00$           155,672.84$         
Total Reimbursement Benefits 1,080.00$             480.00$                     480.00$            480.00$               480.00$                 480.00$             480.00$                3,960.00$             

Total Retirement 53,877.42$           42,189.90$               32,597.10$      30,519.53$         25,994.77$           30,073.16$       28,284.11$           243,535.98$         
-$                       

Social Security Wages 160,200.00   197,395.60           143,705.98               99,150.47        89,500.84           68,484.75             87,427.57         79,118.02             764,783.23$         
Medicare Wages Addition >200K 0.90% -$                       -$                           -$                  -$                     -$                       -$                   -$                       -$                       
Total Tax 13,298.64$           11,497.51$               8,089.01$        7,350.81$           5,239.08$             7,192.21$         6,556.53$             59,223.79$           

Work Comp Insurance .58/100 0.0058 1,060.79               833.49                       575.07              519.10                 397.21                   507.08               458.88                   4,351.64$             
Modification Factor 85% 901.68                   -             708.47                       -           488.81              -           441.24                 -           337.63                   -           431.02               -           390.05                   3,698.90$             

TOTAL Salary and Benefits 275,001.53$        -$          221,374.18$             -$        163,085.39$    -$        150,572.43$       -$        120,836.23$         -$        148,396.27$     -$        137,108.71$        1,216,374.74$     

Page | 82



Staff Classification Jurisdiction Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5

Staff Analyst City of Paso Robles 35.59$    37.77$    40.08$    42.55$    45.16$    
Admin Analyst I County 33.12$    34.78$    36.52$    38.35$    40.27$    
Accountant IWMA Current 34.90$    36.65$    38.48$    40.40$    42.42$    
Accountant IWMA Proposed 36.23$    38.04$    39.94$    41.94$    44.03$    

City Clerk City of Paso Robles 39.84$    42.30$    44.89$    47.65$    50.58$    
Admin Analyst II County 38.96$    40.91$    42.96$    45.11$    47.37$    
Board Clerk IWMA Current 34.98$    36.73$    38.57$    40.49$    42.52$    
Board Clerk IWMA Proposed 36.31$    38.12$    40.03$    42.03$    44.13$    

Solid Waste Coordinator City of Paso Robles 35.59$    37.70$    40.08$    42.55$    45.16$    
Solid Waste Coordinator City of SLO 38.70$    40.74$    42.89$    45.15$    47.53$    
Program Coordinator IWMA Current 31.72$    33.31$    34.94$    36.72$    38.56$    
Program Coordinator IWMA Proposed 32.93$    34.57$    36.30$    38.12$    40.02$    

Program analyst City of Arroyo Grande 37.55$    39.43$    41.40$    43.48$    45.64$    
Admin Analyst II County 38.96$    40.91$    42.96$    45.11$    47.37$    
Program Analyst IWMA Current 37.60$    39.48$    41.45$    43.53$    45.70$    
Program Analyst IWMA Proposed 39.09$    40.98$    43.03$    45.18$    47.44$    

Solid Waste Manager City of Paso Robles 48.50$    51.50$    54.67$    58.04$    61.61$    
Solid Waste Manager City of SLO 48.54$    48.54$    48.54$    48.54$    60.68$    
Program Manager IWMA Current 41.65$    43.74$    45.92$    48.22$    50.63$    
Program Manager IWMA Proposed 43.24$    45.40$    47.67$    50.05$    52.55$    

Deputy Director County of SLO 64.21 67.42 70.79 74.33 78.05
Deputy Director SLOCOG 55.01 88.73
Deputy Director IWMA Current 60.37 63.69 66.56 69.89 73.38
Deputy Director IWMA Proposed 62.67 65.80 69.09 72.54 76.17

Comparables

Page | 83



Page | 84


	BOD Agenda Cover Sheet 08-14-24.pdf
	Item 5 Staff Page, EC Minutes Receive and File.pdf
	Item 5, 05-31-24 EC Minutes.pdf
	Item 6 Staff Page, BOD Minutes Review.pdf
	Item 6, DRAFT Board Minutes - June 12, 2024.pdf
	Presentation
	Consent Agenda
	Adjournment:  3:27 P.M.

	Item 7 Staff Page, Monthly Financial Reports.pdf
	Item 7, May 2024 Financials.pdf
	Item 7, June 2024 Finanicals.pdf
	Item 8 Staff Page, Bank Signatories.pdf
	Item 8, A. Resolution 2023-04-01 Changes to Bank Signatures.pdf
	Item 9 Staff Page, Conflict of Interest.pdf
	Item 9, A. Conflict of Interest Resolution No. 2024-08-02.pdf
	Item 9, B. COI redline.pdf
	Item 9, C. COI wo redline.pdf
	Item 10 Staff Page, Chicago Grade Transfer Station - NDFE.pdf
	Item 10, A. NDFE Chicago Grade Transfer Station (1).pdf
	Item 11 Staff Page, Hamlin.pdf
	Item 11, A. Draft Hamlin Creative Agreement.pdf
	Item 11, B. Hamlin Creative Memo to the Board of Directors.pdf
	Item 12 Staff Page, Audit.pdf
	Item 13 Staff Page, Comp Increase.pdf
	Item 13 A. Current Salary Table.pdf
	new org 2024

	Item 13 B. Proposed Salary Table.pdf
	Budget 24.25

	Item 13 D. Salary Comparison.pdf
	Sheet1

	Item 13 E.. SDRMA History.pdf



